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DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND SENIOR
)

SERVICES, BUREAU OF EMERGENCY
)

MEDICAL SERVICES,
)



)



Petitioner,
)




)


vs.

)

No. 11-1238 DH



)

BLAIR S. HOWARD,
)




)



Respondent.
)

DECISION


Blair S. Howard is subject to discipline because he was convicted of crimes reasonably related to the duties of his profession, an essential element of which is dishonesty, and involving moral turpitude.
Procedure


On June 15, 2011, the Department of Health and Senior Services, Bureau of Emergency Medical Services (“the Department”) filed a complaint seeking to discipline Howard.  On June 29, 2011, we served Howard with a copy of the complaint and our notice of complaint/notice of hearing by certified mail.  Howard did not file an answer.  On October 14, 2011, the Department filed a motion for summary decision.  Our Regulation 1 CSR 15-3.446(6) provides that we may decide this case without a hearing if the Department establishes facts that Howard does not dispute and entitle the Department to a favorable decision. 


We gave Howard until October 31, 2011, to respond to the motion, but he did not respond.  Therefore, the following facts are undisputed.
Findings of Fact

1. Howard is licensed by the Department as an Emergency Medical Technician-Basic (“EMT-Basic”).  His license is, and was at all relevant times, current and active.
2. On July 24, 2007, a charge sheet was submitted by the United States Air Force, 509th  Security Forces Squadron, Whiteman Air Force Base, Missouri, against Howard stating as follows:

CHARGE I:  Violation of the UCMJ [Uniform Code of Military Justice], Article 92

Specification:  In that SENIOR AIRMAN BLAIR S. HOWARD, JR., United States Air Force, 509th Security Forces Squadron, Whiteman Air Force Base, Missouri, did, on divers[
] occasions, at Whiteman Air Force Base, Missouri, between on or about 16 February 2006 and on or about 25 August 2006, violate a lawful general regulation, to wit:  paragraph 2.2.1, Air Force Instruction 33-129, dated 3 February 2005, by wrongfully accessing the website “ebay.com” to sell stolen government property.

CHARGE II:  Violation of the UCMJ, Article 108

Specification 1:  In that SENIOR AIRMAN BLAIR S. HOWARD, JR., United States Air Force, 509th Security Forces Squadron, Whiteman Air Force Base, Missouri, did, at or near Knob Noster, Missouri, on or about 27 February 2006, without proper authority, sell to Mark Cama, a monocular night vision device of a value of more than $500.00, military property of the United States.

Specification 2:  In that SENIOR AIRMAN BLAIR S. HOWARD, JR., United States Air Force, 509th Security Forces Squadron, Whiteman Air Force Base, Missouri, did at or near Knob Noster, Missouri, on or about 24 March 2006, without proper authority, sell to Waldemar Siegried Blach, a monocular night vision device of a value of more than $500.00, military property of the United States.

Specification 3:  In that SENIOR AIRMAN BLAIR S. HOWARD, JR., United States Air Force, 509th Security Forces Squadron, Whiteman Air Force Base, Missouri, did, at or near Knob Noster, Missouri, on or about 12 April 2006, without proper authority, sell to Waldemar Siegfried Blach, a monocular night vision device of a value of more than $500.00, military property of the United States.

Specification 4:  In that SENIOR AIRMAN BLAIR S. HOWARD, JR., United States Air Force, 509th Security Forces Squadron, Whiteman Air Force Base, Missouri, did, at or near Knob Noster, Missouri, on or about 13 May 2006, without proper authority, sell to Anthony Pacifico, a monocular night vision device of a value of more than $500.00, military property of the United States.

Specification 5:  In that SENIOR AIRMAN BLAIR S. HOWARD, JR., United States Air Force, 509th Security Forces Squadron, Whiteman Air Force Base, Missouri, did, at or near Knob Noster, Missouri, on or about 30 May 2006, without proper authority, sell to David Rittmueller, a monocular night vision device of a value of more than $500.00, military property of the United States.

Specification 6:  In that SENIOR AIRMAN BLAIR S. HOWARD, JR., United States Air Force, 509th Security Forces Squadron, Whiteman Air Force Base, Missouri, did, at or near Knob Noster, Missouri, on or about 6 June 2006, without proper authority, sell to Donald Davis, a monocular night vision device of a value of more than $500.00, military property of the United States.

Specification 7:  In that SENIOR AIRMAN BLAIR S. HOWARD, JR., United States Air Force, 509th Security Forces Squadron, Whiteman Air Force Base, Missouri, did, at or near Knob Noster, Missouri, on or about 6 June 2006, without proper authority, sell to Christof Hasse, a monocular night vision device of a value of more than $500.00, military property of the United States.

Specification 8:  In that SENIOR AIRMAN BLAIR S. HOWARD, JR., United States Air Force, 509th Security Forces Squadron, Whiteman Air Force Base, Missouri, did, at or near Knob Noster, Missouri, on or about 5 August 2006, without proper authority, sell to Lawrence Doerffel, a monocular night vision device of a value of more than $500.00, military property of the United States.

Specification 9:  In that SENIOR AIRMAN BLAIR S. HOWARD, JR., United States Air Force, 509th Security Forces Squadron, Whiteman Air Force Base, Missouri, did, at or near Knob Noster, Missouri, on or about 25 August 2006, without proper authority, 
sell to Tim Burton, a bullet proof vest of a value of $500.00 or less, military property of the United States.

Specification 10:  In that SENIOR AIRMAN BLAIR S. HOWARD, JR., United States Air Force, 509th Security Forces Squadron, Whiteman Air Force Base, Missouri, did, at or near Concordia, Missouri, on or about 30 August 2006, without proper authority sell to Donald Davis, a bullet proof vest of a value of $500.00 or less, military property of the United States.

CHARGE III. Violation of the UCMJ, Article 121

Specification:  In that SENIOR AIRMAN BLAIR S. HOWARD, JR., United States Air Force, 509th Security Forces Squadron, Whiteman Air Force Base, Missouri did, at or near Whiteman Air Force Base, Missouri, between on or about 22 October 2003 and 2 September 2006, steal three bullet proof vests, military property, of a total value of more than $500.00, the property of the United States.

3. On November 16, 2007, a general court-martial jury composed of officer and enlisted members convicted Howard, contrary to his pleas, of one specification of violating a lawful general regulation on several occasions, six specifications of the sale of military property without proper authority, and one specification of larceny, in violation of Articles 92, 108, and 121 UCMJ, 10. U.S.C. §§ 892, 908, 921 as follows:

CHARGE I:  ARTICLE 92.  Plea: NG. Finding: G.

Specification:  Did, on divers occasions, at Whiteman Air Force Base, Missouri, between on or about 16 February 2006 and on or about 25 August 2006, violate a lawful general regulation to wit: paragraph 2.2.1, Air Force Instruction 33-129, dated 3 February 2005, by wrongfully accessing the website “ebay.com” to sell stolen government property.  Plea:  NG.  Finding:  G.
CHARGE II:  ARTICLE 108.  Plea: NG.  Finding: G.

Specification 1:  Did, at or near Knob Noster, Missouri, on or about 27 February 2006, without proper authority, sell to Mark Cama, a monocular night vision device of a value of more than 
$500, military property of the United States.  Plea:  NG.  Finding:  G.
Specification 2:  Did, at or near Knob Noster, Missouri, on or about 24 March 2006, without proper authority, sell to Waldemar Siegried Blach, a monocular night vision device of a value of more than $500, military property of the United States.  Plea:  NG. Finding: NG.

Specification 3:  Did, at or near Knob Noster, Missouri, on or about 12 April 2006, without proper authority, sell to Waldemar Siegfried Blach, a monocular night vision device of a value of more than $500, military property of the United States.  Plea:  NG. Finding:  NG (military judge directed verdict for a finding of not guilty).

Specification 4:  Did, at or near Knob Noster, Missouri, on or about 13 May 2006, without proper authority, sell to Anthony Pacifico, a monocular night vision device of a value of more than $500, military property of the United States. Plea:  NG.  Finding:

NG.

Specification 5:  Did, at or near Knob Noster, Missouri, on or about 30 May 2006, without proper authority, sell to David Rittmueller, a monocular night vision device of a value of more than $500, military property of the United States.  Plea:  NG.  Finding:  G.
Specification 6:  Did, at or near Knob Noster, Missouri, on or about 6 June 2006, without proper authority, sell to Donald Davis, a monocular night vision device of a value of more than $500, military property of the United States.  Plea:  NG.  Finding: 
G.

Specification 7:  Did, at or near Knob Noster, Missouri, on or about 6 June 2006, without proper authority, sell to Christof Hasse, a monocular night vision device of a value of more than $500, military property of the United States.  Plea:  NG.  Finding:  NG.
Specification 8:  Did, at or near Knob Noster, Missouri, on or about 5 August 2006, without proper authority, sell to Lawrence Doerffel, a monocular night vision device of a value of more than $500, military property of the United States.  Plea:  NG.  Finding:  G.

Specification 9:  Did, at or near Knob Noster, Missouri, on or about 25 August 2006, without proper authority, sell to Tim 
Burton, a bullet proof vest of a value of $500 or less, military property of the United States.  Plea:  NG.  Finding: G.

Specification 10:  Did, at or near Concordia, Missouri, on or about 30 August 2006, without proper authority, sell to Donald Davis, a bullet proof vest of a value of $500 or less, military property of the United States.  Plea:  NG.  Finding: G.

CHARGE III.  ARTICLE 121.  Plea:  NG.  Finding: G.

Specification:  Did, at or near Whiteman Air Force Base, Missouri, between on or about 22 October 2003 and 2 September 2006, steal three bullet proof vests, military property, of a total value of more than $500, the property of the United States.  Plea:  NG.  Finding:  G.

4. On November 16, 2007, Howard was sentenced as follows:

SENTENCE

Sentence adjudged by officers and enlisted members on 16 November 2007:  Dishonorable discharge, confinement for 1 year and 6 months, forfeiture of all pay and allowances and reduction of E- 1.
5. On January 28, 2010, Howard’s sentence of a dishonorable discharge, confinement for one year and six months, and reduction to airman basic, “as promulgated in General Court-Martial Order No. 9, Headquarters Eighth Air Force (ACC) dated 24 March 2008” was finally affirmed by Darrell D. Jones, Major General of the United States Air Force.

Conclusions of Law 


We have jurisdiction to hear this complaint.
  The Department has the burden of proving that Howard has committed an act for which the law allows discipline.
  Section 190.165.2 states:

The department may cause a complaint to be filed with the administrative hearing commission as provided by chapter 621 
against any holder of any certificate, permit or license required by sections 190.100 to 190.245 or any person who has failed to renew or has surrendered his or her certificate, permit or license for failure to comply with the provisions of sections 190.100 to 190.245 or any lawful regulations promulgated by the department to implement such sections. Those regulations shall be limited to the following:
*   *   *
(2) Being finally adjudicated and found guilty, or having entered a plea of guilty or nolo contendere, in a criminal prosecution under the laws of any state or of the United States, for any offense reasonably related to the qualifications, functions or duties of any activity licensed or regulated pursuant to sections 190.100 to 190.245, for any offense an essential element of which is fraud, dishonesty or an act of violence, or for any offense involving moral turpitude, whether or not sentence is imposed[.]
Regulation 19 CSR 30-40.365 states:

(2) The department may cause a complaint to be filed with the Administrative Hearing Commission as provided by Chapter 621, RSMo, against any holder of any certificate, permit or license required by the comprehensive emergency medical services systems act or any person who has failed to renew or has surrendered his or her certificate, permit or license for failure to comply with the provisions of the comprehensive emergency medical services systems act or for any of the following reasons:

*   *   *
(B) Being finally adjudicated and found guilty, or having entered a plea of guilty or nolo contendere, in a criminal prosecution under the laws of any state or of the United States, for any offense reasonably related to the qualifications, functions or duties of any activity licensed or regulated pursuant to the comprehensive emergency medical services systems act, for any offense an essential element of which is fraud, dishonesty or an act of violence, or for any offense involving moral turpitude, whether or not sentence is imposed[.]

The UCMJ, Article 92 and the corresponding citation in the United States Code, specifically 10 U.S.C. § 892 (failure to obey order), states:

Any person subject to this chapter who -
(1) violates or fails to obey any lawful general order or regulation;
(2) having knowledge of any other lawful order issued by a member of the armed forces, which it is his duty to obey, fails to obey the order; or
(3) is derelict in the performance of his duties;
shall be punished as a court-martial may direct.
The UCMJ, Article 108 and the corresponding citation in the United States Code, specifically 
10 U.S.C. § 908 (military property of the United States – loss, damage, destruction or wrongful disposition), states:

Any person subject to this chapter who, without proper authority​ -

(1) sells or otherwise disposes of,
(2) willfully or through neglect damages, destroys, or loses; or
(3) willfully or through neglect suffers to be lost, damaged, destroyed, sold, or wrongfully disposed of;

any military property of the United States, shall be punished as a court-martial may direct.
The UCMJ, Article 121 and the corresponding citation in the United States Code, specifically 
10 U.S.C. § 921 (larceny), states:

(a) Any person subject to this chapter who wrongfully takes, obtains, or withholds, by an means, from the possession of the owner or of any other person any money, personal property, or article of value of any kind​ - 
(1) with intent permanently to deprive or defraud another person of the use and benefit of property or to appropriate it to his own use or the use of any person other than the owner, steals that property and is guilty of larceny; or
(2) with intent temporarily to deprive or defraud another person of the use and benefit of property or to appropriate it to his own use 
or the use of any person other than the owner, is guilty of wrongful appropriation.
(b) Any person found guilty of larceny or wrongful appropriation shall be punished as a court-martial may direct.
Reasonably Related


Reasonable relation is a low threshold.  To relate is to have a logical connection.
  
Howard was found guilty of six specifications of the sale of military property without proper authority and one specification of larceny, as the crimes are set forth above.  The Department argues that these crimes are reasonably related to the duties of an EMT because patients trust such medical staff to provide care without stealing from them.  We agree and find cause for discipline under § 190.165.2(2) and 19 CSR 30-40.365(2)(B).

Essential Element


An essential element is one that must be proven for a conviction in every case.
  The Department argues that dishonesty is an essential element of the crime of larceny.  Dishonesty is a lack of integrity or a disposition to defraud or deceive.
  We agree and find cause for discipline under § 190.165.2(2) and 19 CSR 30-40.365(2)(B).
Involving Moral Turpitude


Moral turpitude is:

an act of baseness, vileness, or depravity in the private and social duties which a man owes to his fellowman or to society in general, contrary to the accepted and customary rule of right and duty between man and man; everything “done contrary to justice, honesty, modesty, and good morals.”[
]

In Brehe v. Missouri Dep’t of Elementary and Secondary Education,
 a case that involved discipline of a teacher’s certificate under § 168.071 for committing a crime involving moral turpitude, the court referred to three classifications of crimes:

(1) crimes that necessarily involve moral turpitude, such as frauds (Category 1 crimes);

(2) crimes “so obviously petty that conviction carries no suggestion of moral turpitude,” such as illegal parking (Category 2 crimes); and

(3) crimes that “may be saturated with moral turpitude,” yet do not involve it necessarily, such as willful failure to pay income tax or refusal to answer questions before a congressional committee (Category 3 crimes).

The court stated that Category 3 crimes require consideration of “the related factual circumstances” of the offense to determine whether moral turpitude is involved.


We have found that stealing is a Category 1 crime.
  We find that the crime of larceny is also a Category 1 crime and involves moral turpitude.


Our review of the elements of the crime involving military property, however, convinces us that it is a Category 3 crime.  The crime can be committed through neglect rather than with intent.  We can conceive of a situation in which losing military property through neglect might not involve baseness, vileness, or depravity.  As a Category 3 crime, we must consider the facts surrounding the crime Howard committed, not just the elements of the crime itself.  Considering the circumstances that we have before us, that on several occasions Howard took military 
property and sold it without authorization – essentially stealing it – we find that the crime involves moral turpitude.


We find cause for discipline under § 190.165.2(2) and 19 CSR 30-40.365(2)(B).
Summary


There is cause for discipline under § 190.165.2(2) and 19 CSR 30-40.365(2)(B).  We grant the motion for summary decision and cancel the hearing.


SO ORDERED on November 23, 2011.


________________________________



SREENIVASA RAO DANDAMUDI



Commissioner

�Mot. Ex. 2 at 14 and (reverse side of ) 15.


�Various.  MERRIAM-WEBSTER’S COLLEGIATE DICTIONARY 365 (11th  ed. 2004).   


�Mot. Ex. 2 at 9-10.


�Mot. Ex. 2 at 10.


�Id. at 7.


�Section 621.045.  Statutory references, unless otherwise noted, are to RSMo Supp. 2010.


�Missouri Real Estate Comm’n v. Berger, 764 S.W.2d 706, 711 (Mo. App., E.D. 1989).


�MERRIAM-WEBSTER’S COLLEGIATE DICTIONARY 1050 (11th ed. 2004).


�State ex rel. Atkins v. Missouri Bd. of Accountancy, 351 S.W.2d 483, 485 (Mo. App., K.C.D. 1961).


�MERRIAM-WEBSTER’S COLLEGIATE DICTIONARY 359 (11th ed. 2004).


�In re Frick, 694 S.W.2d 473, 479 (Mo. banc 1985) (quoting In re Wallace, 19 S.W.2d 625 (Mo. banc 1929)).  


�213 S.W.3d 720 (Mo. App., W.D. 2007).


�Id. at 725 (quoting Twentieth Century-Fox Film Corp. v. Lardner, 216 F.2d 844, 852 (9th Cir. 1954)).


	�Id. at 725.


�See In re Carpenter, 891 A.2d 223 (D.C. 2006) (moral turpitude is inherent in crimes that have an intent to defraud or steal).  See also U.S. v. Morrow, 2005 WL 3163801 (D.D.C. June 2, 2005 and Johnson v. Commonwealth, 581 S.E.2d 880 (41 Va. App., 2003) (misdemeanor crimes of moral turpitude are limited to those crimes involving lying, cheating, and stealing).
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